Call to Order:

Pledge of Allegiance:

Roll Call:

Public Comment

Village of Wadsworth
Minutes of the Regular Village Board Meeting
Held at the Village Hall
March 5, 2024

President Witte called the meeting of the Village Board of Trustees to order at
6:00 pm.

President Witte led the Pledge of Allegiance.

In attendance in person were Village Trustees Robert Hayden, Ben Dolan,
Mildred Corder, and Ken Furlan. Village Trustees Geralyn Hansen and Mait
Polheber were absent. Village President Fred Witte, Village Administrator Pat
DiPersio, Village Attorney Megan Mack and Village Clerk Darlene Roback were
also physically present.

A Motion was made by Trustee Dolan, seconded by Trustee Corder, to move the
Public Comment section of the Agenda up so that it could be discussed earlier in
the meeting.

Voice Vote: Ayes — All. Nays - None. Motion Carried.

Public Comment Item No. 1: Viking School Incident

The first item to be discussed was the incident at Viking School in Gurnee.
Village President Witte commented that the Village Board is interested to hear
about the incident, and asked all participating in the Public Comment portion of
the meeting to keep their individual comments to no more than five minutes.

The first speaker was Megan DeLasses. Ms. DeLasses is a parent of a student
currently attending Viking School in Gurnee. Ms. DeLasses informed those
present of a recent incident at the school involving a student who brought a
loaded handgun to school. She commented on the level of violence at the school,
including student fights. Ms. DeLasses stated that she has had teachers tell her
that they do not feel safe at the school and that nothing is being done to address
the violent behavior at the school by the Gurnee School Board. Ms. DeLasses
stated that she understands the school is located in the Village of Gurnee and not
in the Village of Wadsworth. However, she is asking for assistance and guidance
from the Wadsworth Village Board on how to better address these issues with the
Gurnee School Board and the Gurnee Police Department.

The next speaker was Derek Gibson. Mr. Gibson is also a parent of a student
currently attending Viking School. Mr. Gibson agreed with the comments made
by Ms. DeLasses. Mr. Gibson added that he was hoping for a partnership with
the Village of Wadsworth Board to assist with opening the lines of
communication and transparency with the Gurnee School Board.

Ms. DeLasses and Mr. Gibson stated that the parents of the students did not know
of the incident until the Gurnee Police sent out a Press Release.

Trustee Dolan suggested that the Village Board allow Village Administrator
DiPersio to work with the Village Attorney to prepare a resolution to the Gurnee
District 56 School Board. President Witte stated that tonight’s meeting minutes
shall reflect that the Village of Wadsworth Board will work on the resolution to



Village of Wadsworth
Minutes of the Regular Village Board Meeting
Held at the Village Hall
March 5, 2024

address the Gurnee District 56 School Board; adding that the earliest a resolution
could be presented would be at the next Wadsworth Village Board Meeting
scheduled for March 19%. President Witte then thanked the parents for coming to
the meeting to discuss this topic.

Public Comment Item No. 2: Proposed Cannibas Dispensary

The next item brought up for discussion was the proposed cannibas dispensary.
The speaker was Tom Duffy. Mr. Duffy stated that he was speaking on behalf of
the owner of the property located on the Southeast corner of Routes 41 and 173.
He provided a summary of how he thought that was a perfect location for a
cannibas dispensary when he learned the Village of Wadsworth had passed an
ordinance allowing for cannibas dispensaries. Mr. Duffy stated that he applied
for a Conditional Use Permit (“CUP”) which was granted in December, 2020. He
stated that the CUP had two requirements: (1) offsite parking; and (2) Illinois
Department of Transportation (“IDOT”) approval. He also looked into having
offsite parking on the property across the street. In September, 2021 Mr. Duffy
appeared before the Wadsworth Board and spoke about moving the cannibas
dispensary across the street. Mr. Duffy then learned of the availability of the
property located on the Northeast Corner of Routes 41 and 173. He stated that
when he received the CUP, his intent was to find someone who already had a
cannibas license to see if they would be able to provide assistance.

Village Attorney Mack then interjected that the Village is deferring approval on
the proposed cannibas dispensary until the next Board meeting.

Mr. Louis Lang next spoke. He stated that he was sponsor of the first cannibas
bill during his tenure in the Illinois General Assembly. He commented on the
individuals who need this drug for medical purposes. He stated that the time is
coming when adult use cannibas dispensaries will be allowed to sell cannibas at a
discount to individuals for medical use. He noted that there are only five (5)
medical cannibas dispensaries located in Lake County, Illinois. Mr. Lang stated
that the first proposed facility is small in size and may not be able to meet the
parking needs for individuals with mobility issues who come to these
dispensaries to purchase cannibas for medical purposes.

Ms. Kallee Hooghkirk, representing Midwest G Holdings, next commented on
the proposed cannibas dispensary. She stated that she had helped to open the
first cannibas dispensary in Lake County, Illinois. She further stated that
Midwest G Holdings maintains four (4) main corporate commitments and wishes
to align with the Village Board and the best interests of the community relating to
the cannibas dispensary:

Preservation of natural beauty

Focus on community safety and security
Economic advancement and economic growth
Creating a dispensary that is a destination spot

The next individual to speak was Rory Ruben, CEO and founder of a modular
company in Lake County, Illinois. She commented that one of the main concerns

2



Special Business

Village of Wadsworth
Minutes of the Regular Village Board Meeting
Held at the Village Hall
March 5, 2024

of any village is to quickly bring in revenue. She stated that his company’s
modular buildings, which are 9,000 sq ft. in size, are large enough to be utilized
for a cannibas dispensary and can be completed in eight (8) weeks’ time.

The final speaker was Robert Long, representing the salvage yard owned by the
Brosten family. The Brosten family is proposing that a cannibas dispensary be
allowed on their site. Mr. Long commented that Wadsworth is a border
community and the dispensary would attract business from neighboring
Wisconsin. He stated that the Brosten’s proposed site is much larger and could
accommodate additional parking for individuals with mobility issues. He added
that the Brosten’s plan would call for a temporary building to be erected first
with a permanent structure to follow.

The Public Comment portion of the meeting was then closed.

Special Business Item No. 1: Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4)

Ms. Karolina Cho of Gewalt Hamilton provided an informative presentation on
the MS4 Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System. Ms. Cho noted that the MS4
system prevents issues within storm water outflow. She referred to several
photos in a handout which provided examples of what illicit discharge in storm
water looks like including, but not limited to, oil, soap suds, debris, etc.

Ms. Cho stated that Gewalt Hamilton conducts inspections every year which
involve sending interns out to physically look at the storm water outflows.
However, no chemical testing is done.

Ms. Cho noted that Gewalt Hamilton inspects 20% of the Village’s storm water
system every year. They then provide a summary of what was inspected and
advise of any illicit discharges that were found, or if grates or piping have issues.
Ms. Cho commented that the permit is renewed every five (5) years; noting that
the pervious permit was to renew in 2023 but did not get done. Therefore, a new
permit will be issued in 2024; hopefully later this month. When the permit is
issued, Gewalt Hamilton will provide a new storm water management plan to the
Village. Ms. Cho stated that the Village currently does not have any discharge or
structural issues with regard to the drains.

Special Business Item No. 2: St. Patrick Church Proposed Electronic
Message Board

Mr. Brent Reynolds from St. Patrick School’s Board explained the merger of Our
Lady of Humility Church with St. Patrick Church forming St. Brigid Parish. He
stated that the Parish is looking to install an electronic sign as an improvement to
the current sign in front of the old church on Wadsworth Road the purpose of
which is to improve communication between the Parish and the surrounding
community. This new electronic sign would be a moving sign and is designed
to adjust its brightness with the ambient lighting. The sign can be timed and does
not need to be operational on a 24/7 basis. Mr. Reynolds added that the sign



Village of Wadsworth
Minutes of the Regular Village Board Meeting
Held at the Village Hall
March 5, 2024
could also be used to provide information on special events both for the Church
and the Village.

Village Administrator DiPersio then provided a brief recap of the issue. He
stated that the sign proposal was brought to the Village Board in 2023. He noted
that the current Village Zoning Code does not permit this type of sign on this
type of use and would require departure from the current Village Zoning Code.
Mr. DiPersio commented that the Historic Overlay District does not allow
electronic signs and added that the underlying zoning is Residential which does
not permit signs at all. He stated that this sign is non-conforming as it is too tall
noting that a sign may be no higher than 6 feet tall and this sign is 9 feet in
height. Mr. DiPersio advised that an easier approach may be to do something
around the use of a school and/or church facility to eliminate certain restrictions.
The Trustees voiced their concerns over a moving sign, commenting that it may
be distracting for drivers and could pose a safety issue. Village Administrator
DiPersio commented that the American Planning Association has studied types
of moving signs over a period of time and concluded that moving signs do not
provide any more distraction than a traditional sign.

After discussion, the Trustees agreed that Village Administrator DiPersio share
the information on the proposed electronic sign with the Village Planner and ask
for direction on how to possibly address the Parish’s request within the Village
Zoning Code. The Parish Sign Committee will contact residents near the
proposed sign placement to see if they have any concerns.

Special Business Item No. 3: Proposed Drive-Thru Restaurant to be
Located at 41404 US Highway 41

Mr. Raheem Lakhani spoke about a proposed Browns Chicken to be located at
41404 US Highway 41.

Village Administrator DiPersio noted that there is a shared drive with the parcel
to the North containing a gas station and we want to make sure that this parcel
has access to US Highway 41. Mr. Lakhani commented on the limited fast food
options in the area and felt that a Browns Chicken would do well at that location.
He noted that they will also want to obtain a liquor license for wine and beer.

Mr. Tim Kennefick, President of Browns Chicken, stated that at Browns Chicken
alcohol will only be served by the store manager. He added that Browns Chicken
currently serves alcohol in this manner at locations in St. Charles and Melrose
Park. He noted the proposed location will have a full Browns Chicken menu and
plans to offer gaming. Attorney Mack noted that gaming is not allowed without
a liquor license.

Village Administrator DiPersio noted that the Board will need to create an
additional liquor license for Browns Chicken. Village President Witte stated that
Village Administrator DiPersio should work to verify the requirements for the
liquor license and build out process.



Establish Consent Agenda:

Approval of Consent Agenda:

Old Business:

New Business:

Village President’s Report:

Village of Wadsworth
Minutes of the Regular Village Board Meeting
Held at the Village Hall
March §, 2024
A motion was made by Trustee Corder, seconded by Trustee Furlan, to establish
a Consent Agenda to approve the following items:

a. Approval of the February 20, 2024 Village Board Regular Meeting Minutes
b. Approval of Bills to be Paid as of March 5, 2024

Voice Vote: Ayes — All. Nays - None. Motion Carried.

A motion was made by Trustee Corder, seconded by Trustee Hayden, to approve
the Consent Agenda, as presented.

Roll Call Vote:

Ayes: Hayden, Dolan, Corder, Furlan
Absent: Hansen, Polheber

Nays: None

Motion Carried.

There was no Old Business.
New Business Item No. 1: Discussion and Possible Action to Approve a

$1,000.00 Donation to Support the Newport Township Fire Protection
District Annual Senior Luncheon

The Trustees discussed the proposed donation to the Newport Township Fire
Protection District Annual Senior Luncheon to be held on June 20, 2024.

A motion was made by Trustee Furlan, seconded by Trustee Corder, to approve a
$1,000.00 donation to support the Newport Township Fire Protection District
Annual Senior Luncheon with the condition that the Village request and receive
an accounting of how the funds were used.

Roll Call Vote:

Ayes: Hayden, Dolan, Corder, Furlan
Absent: Hansen, Polheber

Nays: None

Motion Carried.

Village President Witte did not provide a report. However, he discussed and
recommended the appointment of Doug Jacobs to the Plan Commission/Zoning
Board of Appeals.

A motion was made by Trustee Corder, seconded by Trustee Hayden, to approve
the appointment of Doug Jacobs to the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of
Appeals.

Roll Call Vote:

Ayes: Hayden, Dolan, Corder, Furlan
Absent: Hansen, Polheber

Nays: None

Motion Carried.



Village of Wadsworth
Minutes of the Regular Village Board Meeting
Held at the Village Hall
March 5, 2024

Village Attorney’s Report:  Village Attorney Mack did not provide a report.

Village Administrator’s Village Administrator DiPersio provided the following updates:
Report:

e the liquor license annual renewals were mailed out last week, and the
inspections must be completed by the end of April.

e the salt order has been submitted for next year. The Village did not use
all of the salt ordered for this year. 350 tons of salt will need to be
placed in the storage facility.

e The Village Hall furnace failed last Friday, March 1%, and was replaced
at a cost of $4,500.00

e The buildings are being demolished on the Cermack property. The site is
secured with Jersey barriers up at the entrance point as requested by the
Lake County Sheriff’s Department.

e Solar Farm and Weiler property have submitted an Application for
Rezoning.

e The Mayor’s Luncheon will be held on April 18™. Village President
Witte is speaking at the luncheon. The Village may purchase a table at
the luncheon. Those wishing to attend should contact Village
Administrator DiPersio.

Village President Witte noted that there is a St. Baldrick’s Fundraiser in
Waukegan on March 24%. St. Baldrick’s is an organization that raises money
for children’s cancer research. Village President Witte will be participating
in the fundraiser.

Committee Reports:
Finance: Trustee Polheber was absent. Therefore, a Finance Report was not provided.
Public Service: Trustee Hansen was absent. Therefore, a Public Service Report was not provided.

Planning, Zoning & Plats: Trustee Hayden not provide a report.

A motion was made by Trustee Corder, seconded by Trustee Dolan, to move the
Discussion and Possible Action to Approve a Conditional Use Permit and a
Variation for the Property Located at 41509 N. US Highway 41 to another date to
be determined.

Roll Call Vote:

Ayes: Hayden, Dolan, Corder, Furlan
Absent: Hansen, Polheber

Nays: None

Motion Carried.



Road and Bridge:

Ordinance:

Parks and Village Hall:

Adjournment:

Village of Wadsworth
Minutes of the Regular Village Board Meeting
Held at the Village Hall
March 5, 2024

Trustee Dolan did not provide a report.

Village Administrator DiPersio commented that Peter Baker & Sons were in the
Wadsworth Oaks subdivision marking for the project. Resurfacing will start as
soon as possible after May 1%, noting that this project is MFT funded and,
therefore, cannot begin laying surface down until May 1%. Village Administrator
DiPersio also commented on the Oak Knoll subdivision project noting that
adjustments to the design are being considered. The approximate cost is
$275,000 which includes improvement to the ditches and raising the West end of
the Cul-de-Sac.

Trustee Furlan reported that the Ordinance Committee meeting was held last
week on February 29", He commented that the Village needs to reassess the one
acre requirement as some residents do not have a full one acre parcel. Trustee
Furlan stated that the Village needs to change the one acre requirement to 40,000
sq. ft. Village Administrator DiPersio noted that there are exceptions for
accessory buildings, and added that solutions may be found in the Accessory
Code.

Trustee Corder stated the Parks and Village Hall Committee meeting was held
last week on February 26™. No quotes have been received for the generator.

Village Administrator DiPersio commented that we are currently waiting on the
part needed for the repair to the Village Hall lift. He added that he is talking to
Cory about various Village projects and has asked for a quote for the roof on the
West garage. Trustee Furlan commented about the grading of the baseball field
and if we had someone available to do the work would they be able to donate that
labor to the Village? Village Attorney Mack stated that indemnification would
be needed that those individual(s) would not sue the Village if they were hurt on
the job. Village Administrator DiPersio stated that we have a small piece of
equipment capable of doing the work.

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:58 p.m. on a motion
by Trustee Corder, seconded by Trustee Furlan.

Voice Vote: Ayes - All. Nays - None. Motion carried.




